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THE CHINESE ELECTRIC POWER CO., LTD.

A Brief Report of Its Post-War

Preliminary Reconstruction Efforts.

April, 1949,

1. Pre-War Power Supply Situation.

Prior to the war of resistance z.igainst Japanese aggression in 1937, the Chinese
Electric Power Co., Ltd. owned and possessed three sets of power-generating
equipment of a total capacity of 16,000 KW at its power plant located at the
former South Railway Station. At that time the Company’s franchise area covered
the whole of Nantao, Chao-chin and Chao-hong districts and part of Fa-hwa: and
Poo-sung districts. Besides supplying these areas with electric power, the Company
also undertcok to distribute supply under bulk-purchase agreements to power utility
firms in Pootung, Siking, Chipao, Sinchuang, and even as far as in Sungkiang.
Owing to the expansion of the Company’s business area and for meeting the gradual
increase in power demand, the Company started in 1935 to lay out plans for the
construction of a new and additional power plant. The Company contracted a
purchase order with the Siemens Company for two sets of steam-turbo generators.
of 15,000 KW each (totalling 30,000 KW) and at the same time ordered from the
Skodaworks and the Babcock & Wilcox three boilers. A site on the Nantao
Riverside on the former Pan Sung Yuen Road was selected as the location for the
new plant and construction work for the foundation structure of the new plant
was commenced in 1936. By August of the following year, the building to house
the new plant as well as the foundation structure for the generating machinery
and boilers were completed and ready for the arrival and installation of the
generating sets and boilers. However, on August 13th, 1937 fighting suddenly
broke out in the Shanghai area culminating in eight long years of war of resistance
against the Japanese invaders. Thus all our hopes of peaceful expansion were

dashed to pieces.
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2. War-time Loss Due to Destruction and Seizure of Property; Post-War Efforts

Made in Applying for the Restoration of Generating Machinery and Equipment.

After the outbreak of the Sino-Japanese hostilities in Shanghai the Company’s
original 16,000 KW generating plant was immediately seized by the enemy and
subsequently it was totally stripped. Besides taking away this power-generating
plant, the Japanese also removed the Company’s tramway rolling stock, bed-rails,
etc. ' It is generally recognized that of all the pﬁblic utilities companies in Shanghai,
the Chinese Electric Power Company suffered the worst war-time loss and
destruction. Upon the realization of Victory in September, 1945, the Company
obtained information, based on reliable reports submitted by the Japanese staff
members of the bogus Central China Waterworks & Electricity Company, and later
substantiated by the Company’s own findings, that of the original 16,000 KW
generating equipment two sets of 6,400 KW and 3,200 KW respectively were removed
and installed in the Iron and Steel Works located at Shih Ching Shan in the suburb
of Peiping and another set of 6,400 KW was removed and installed in the Power
Plant situated in Poshan in Shantung Province. Both these organizations, the Iron
and Steel Works in Peiping and the Power Plant in Shantung, are under the
jurisdiction and control of the National Resources Commission of the Chinese
Government. On two separate occasions the Company sent representatives to
Peiping to investigate on the spot and found that the machinery and equipment
were in good condition and being in satisfactory operation. Since the Company’s
resumption after V-J Day, the Company has repeatedly appealed and applied to the
National Resources Commission as well as the Executive Yuan, the Ministry of
Economic Affairs, the Municipal Government cf Shanghai, the Bureau of Public
Utilities of the Shanghai City Government, the Alien Property Administrations in
the Peiping and Tientsin Areas and in the Kiangsu, Chekiang and Anhwei Areas,
etc. requesting them either for their permission or assistance to restore these
machinery and equipment to the Company. After repeated appeals, the National

Resources Commission finally recognized in principle that the said three sets of
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generating equipment now in operation in Peiping and Poshan are the property of
this Company forcibly seized by the Japanese invaders. The National Resources
Commission further agreed in principle to return the three sets to the Company at
the earliest possible date. As a step to implement this principle, the National
Resources Commission and the Chinese Electric Power Co., Ltd. undertook in July
1947 to exchange letters embodying the former’s commitment to return the said
property to the Company. However, upon submission of the agreement to the
Executive Yuan for final approval, the latter ruled that the case should be re-examined,
thereby causing a further delay in restoring the said property to its rightful owners.
Such is the result of two years of protracted negotiations and immense efforts exerted
by the Company in endeavoring to repossess the three generating sets seized by the
Japanese and taken over by the Chinese Government. During the two years, may
it be recalled, the Company had delivered a total of seventy communications and
had received sixty-five replies in relation to the case. The correspondence file
pertaining to the matter is listed and enumerated as follows:

Communications To: Communications From:
The Executive Yuan S 1
The Ministry of Economic Affairs 9 21
The National Resources Commission
(and its subsidiary Iron & Steel
Works) - 28 23
Alien Property Administrations in
Hopei Province, Peiping and Tientsin,
and Tsingtao 12 6
The Central Trust of China 1
Alien Property Administration
in Kiangsu, Chekiang and

Anhwei Provinces 4 2

Bureau of Public Utilities of the
Municipal Government of Shanghai 11 11

The Municipal Government of
Shanghai 1

In the fall of 1948 when the situation in Shantung Province had become very



4-

tense, the Company received advice from the Executive Yuan giving permission for
the return of the generating set located in Poshan, Shantung. But by that time the
said area had already become inaccessible as there were no longer any available
means of transportation or communication to and from the locality. Under such
circumstances, it was considered next to impossible to move the generating set from
where it was located in Poshan. Meanwhile, the case of the two generating sets in
Shih Ching Shan near Peiping, whose return has been most keenly sought by the.
Company, remains in abeyance -- officially still under examination pending final
decision by the highest authority.

3. Purchase of New Generating Machinery from CNRRA.,

Upon resumption of operation after the end of the War, the Company concluded
an agreement with the Shanghai Power Company for a bulk purchase of power
supply for re-distribution to consumers in its franchise area. But the bulk supply
from the Shanghai Power Company is under strict restriction and therefore there
has always been a shortage of supply to meet the existing minimum, not to mention
the potential, demand.. While the Company’s hope of restoring its original generating
sets from the Government remains unfulfilled, power shortage in the Company’s
franchise area becomes more acute as time goes on. In striving to obtain equipment
to generate its own power to supplement the present purchased supply, the Company
in December 1946 concluded a purchase order with CNRRA for two sets of
American-made generating machinery of 2,000 KW each. As soon as this agreement
was reached, the Company began constructing the necessary plant structure af the
Riverside site on Pan Sung Yuen Road to house the ordered machinery. The original
a greement with CNRRA provides for delivery in March 1947, but shipment had been
delayed time and again in spite of repeated requests for early delivery. It was
only in the period between July and December 1947 that a portion of the sets arrived.
A few months elapsed from then on without any news of the next shipment.
Then, starting from March 1948 and lasting until August 1948 a further portion of

the machinery arrived in separate shipments. However, despite repeated urgent
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requests from the Company, no machine drawings or illustrations were sent by the
suppliers. It can be seen that without these original machine drawings the Company
was in no position to prepare for the construction of the foundation structure and
the machine house. Finally,‘ in the Spring of 1948 the original drawings of the
machinery were delivered to the Company by CNRRA. Again, two essential items
were found missing from CNRRA’s delivery. These were, first, two sets of boiler
feed pumps and, second, two sets of generator voltage regulators. These important
items were not to be found in CNRRA’s delivery and without which power could
not be generated. After painstaking efforts in tracing these missing items, the two
sets of boiler feed pumps were at last located lying idle with the suppliers in the
United States. The boiler feed pumps were subsequently purchased as a separate
order and, according to advice from the suppliers, they were shipped from a certain
East Coast port in U. S. in the latter part of October 1948. Owing to the maritime
strike in the States, the boiler feed pumps did not arrive until early this year. The
generator voltage regulators were also ordered separately from the Andersen, Meyer
& Co., Ltd. In short, there had been a lot of unnecessary delay in the installation
of this 4,000 KW plant. Work had not been progressing smcothly according to
schedule, but much of the fault falls outside of the Company. In spite of all
difficulties, the Company, however, now finds relief and gratification in reporting
the final consummation of this 4,000 KW plant.

4. The Company's Utilization of Man-Power.

On the material side, it may be said the Company suffered disastrous loss as a
result of China’s eight years war of resistance. But it is a heavenly blessing that
there has been no loss of lives or man-power so far as the Company’s personnel is
concerned. Therefore, despite the delays and procrastinations in CNRRA'’s delivery
of the generating machinery, the Company immediately mobilized all of its available
technical talent and man-power in blue-printing and building the new plant as soon
as the original drawings were received. The blue-print was duly sent to the Bureau

of Public Works for approval and as soon as the Bureau's license was secured, the
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tender to contractors was rendered and construction commenced in April 1948 and
concluded in tne middle of August of the same year. Under the direction of its
chief englneer, Mr. SPTeng, and the chlef of its power-generatmg department, Mr
P H. Lee, the technical staff and laborers of the Company were mobilized in day and
night shifts to install the generating sets. A good deal of extra repalr work had
fo be vdone to CNRRA’s sets before instellatlon. The two sets of 2,000 KW each
were meant to be instalied as separate units; But, for the sake of centralization of
management and operation the Companylmerged and installed the two sets as one
single unit, thereby reduirmg eome remodelling work. Starting from September 1948
and ending in the latter part of December 1948, the construction and installation
job bof the new 4,000 KW plant was completed within the short period of four
montns. The Comnany, therefore, cites with gretification the closely ‘co-ordinated
efforts and the cooperating spirit of the management and staff and laborers in the
final compietion of the new olanf.

5. Prospects and Hopes for the Future.

In summary, it must be reiterated that the Chinese Electric Power Co., Ltd. had
euffered unprecedented loss and destruction in material assets and resources due to
eight long years of war. Smce the reahzatlon of Peace, the Company has spared
no pains in the work of rehablhtatlon and reconstructxon with the object of restorlng
the Company to its pre-war status. For the present, its generating capacity is
limited and the Company realizes that it still has a long way to go in meeting the
acute power shortage in its franchise area. L.ong-term reconstruction and expansion
will necessarily await more settled and normal conditions in the future. Meanwhile,
the Company respectfully solicits the cooperation of all, especially fellow public
utility companies, in their common endeavor to’ provide the maximum of public

service to the community.









